Completing the Second Call Candidate Site Submission Form
The following guidance note seeks to provide support to promoters of land and other interested parties on the information required as part of the candidate site process. By providing as much information as possible it will help the Council process and assess your candidate site efficiently. 

The submission period commences on Tuesday 30th March 2021 and representations must be received by Tuesday 18th May 2021.
Officers from the Council’s Development Plans team are able to assist in the completion of the form. Please contact the Development Plans team for further information. 

Contact details for the team are:
Telephone: 01495 354740
Email: planningpolicy@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 
Important Points to Note

Please note that the submission of a site does not imply that it will be accepted and allocated for development by the Council. 
The Authority may also put sites forward for inclusion. Any such submissions will be assessed in the same way as all other submissions. 

Landowners of land already allocated in the current plan (with or without planning permission) which has not yet been developed will need to complete this form and the site will be re-assessed in the same way as all other submissions.
All candidate sites submissions will be available for public inspection in the form of a candidate site Register and cannot be treated as confidential. 
What to include in your submission?
The minimum information required for each submission to be considered must include:

· A plan showing a red line boundary of the proposed site. An ordnance survey (OS) map of minimum scale 1:2500 is required which clearly indicates the site boundary.  Any adjoining land in the same ownership should be outlined in blue. 

· Completion of a submission form with all questions answered and all relevant supporting information. 
If you have any queries relating to the completion of the form, please contact the Development Plans team on 01495 354740. 

Personal Details 

Please submit all relevant contact details. Please note that if you nominate an agent, all correspondence will be sent to the agent. 
Site Details 
Please provide details of the site in relation to its name and location. Please identify the location of the site and include an up to date ordnance survey (OS) map of minimum scale 1:2500 identifying the site edged in red. Any adjoining land in the ownership of the proposer should be outlined in blue. Please also indicate the OS Grid Reference, if known. 
Site Area in hectares

Candidate sites should indicate the area of the proposed site in hectares. For residential candidate sites, the minimum threshold is 10 dwellings or a minimum site size of 0.3 ha. Notwithstanding this, we will accept the submission of smaller residential candidate sites where a revision of the settlement boundary will be required. These will be considered as part of the settlement boundary review. There are no minimum thresholds for all other land use submissions. 

The total area of the site that is greenfield land and the total area of the site that is previously developed land in hectares should also be provided if known. 
A definition of previously developed land is provided in Planning Policy Wales Edition 10 through this link and can be found on pages 37 and 38. 
Proposed Use 

Submissions should identify the proposed land use of the site. This includes land uses such as Residential; Employment; Education; Recreation and Leisure; other Community Facilities; Retail; Tourism; Gypsy and Travellers; Minerals and Waste; and Renewable Energy Technology. For mixed use please specify the range of uses. 
You should also provide a description of the proposed use, for example for residential development an indication of the number of dwellings. If this is unknown at this stage please use a density of 35 dwellings per hectare. 
If sites are put forward for areas of land to be protected from development, these will be subject to a separate process and will be considered through the green infrastructure / open space assessment. 
Land Use/Planning History
What is the existing or previous use of the site, if vacant? 

Submissions should identify the existing or previous land use of the site. 

Has the site been the subject of any planning applications?
Submissions should also indicate if the site has planning consent. Please provide details of reasons for refusal if applicable and reference numbers if known. 
Is the site allocated in the current development plan either partly or in its entirety?
Submissions should also indicate and provide details if the site is allocated in the current LDP, either partly or in its entirety. Please indicate the name and policy number. This information can be gained by referring to the site on LDP Proposals Map. The relevant policies can be found in the LDP Written Statement. 
Site Ownership

Are you the sole owner of the site?

Proposers of land should indicate if they own the site which they are submitting. Where the proposer wishes to submit land for inclusion in the LDP, but they do not own the site they should declare their interest in the site. If the site is owned by a number of landowners, contact details should be provided of all landowners. 

Are there any restrictive covenants on the site?

If the proposer is aware of any known covenants on any part of the land within the site that places restrictions on its use, details should be provided. This also applies to any existing buildings on the site. Please specify how the covenant will impact on your proposal.

If the site is in public ownership, is it included in a Disposal Strategy?
If the site is in public ownership please indicate if the site is included in a Disposal Strategy. 

Site Suitability

Does the site have any known physical constraints? 
Proposers should indicate yes or no. Please provide any details of known instability/ topography features of the site and vegetation cover and how these issues may be overcome. 
Is the site within a C1 or C2 flood risk zone? 

New development should be directed away from flood zone C and towards suitable land in Zone A, otherwise to Zone B, where river and coastal flooding will be less of an issue. In Zone C, the tests outlined in section 6 and 7 of TAN 15 Development and Flood Risk will be applied, recognising that highly vulnerable development and emergency services in Zone C2 should not be permitted. All other new development should only be permitted within zones C1 and C2 if determined by the planning authority to be justified in this location. 

Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk can be found here. The Development Advice Maps can be found here. 
Is the site affected by any known ‘bad neighbour’ uses? 
Proposers should indicate yes or no. Please provide details of any known ‘bad neighbour’ uses such as power lines, railway lines, major highways and proximity to heavy industry. 
Is there a possibility that the site is contaminated?
Proposers should indicate yes or no. If any part of the site being proposed is thought to contain contaminated land, the proposer should provide details of the potential source of contamination. 
Accessibility 

Is the site accessible from the public highway?

Proposers should indicate yes or no. If no, details should be provided of how access to the public highway is to be achieved. If third party land is required to achieve access, details should be provided of any contact made with third party land holders and include their contact details. 
Where is the nearest community facility? 
Please indicate where the nearest community facilities are and their approximate distance. This could include community halls, youth centres, shops, post office, schools, commercial services etc.
Where is the nearest public transport stop? 
Please indicate where the nearest public transport access points are i.e. train station or bus stops and their approximate distance from the site. 
Where is the nearest useable open space? 

Please indicate where the nearest useable open space is and their approximate distance from the site. 

Do any public rights of way cross or adjoin the site? 

Please indicate if any public rights of way cross or adjoin the site.
Would development of the site encourage walking and cycling?

Please indicate if the site is located in close proximity to an existing or proposed cycle route and/or active travel routes. 
Environmental 

Is the site within or in close proximity to national ecological designations? 

Please indicate if the site is within or in close proximity to national ecological designations. The only national designation in Blaenau Gwent is a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). Details are shown on the LDP constraints map 
Is the site within or in close proximity to local designations? 

Please indicate if the site is within or in close proximity to local ecological designations. The local designations in Blaenau Gwent include Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs) and Local Nature Reserves (LNRs). The SINCs are shown on the LDP Proposals Map and the LNRs on the Constraints Map. 
Have any site surveys been undertaken such as protected species, if appropriate?

Please provide details of any site surveys in relation to the environment that may have been undertaken to date. 
Are there any views into and out of the site that should be retained? 

Please provide details of any views into and out of the site that should be retained. 
Will there be a loss of woodland/trees/hedgerow?

Please identify if the proposal will result in the loss of woodland/trees/hedgerows. 
Would the proposal include low or zero carbon energy generating technologies?
Please identify if the proposal would include low or zero carbon energy generating technologies. Examples include: wind energy technology; solar photovoltaics; biomass technology; and ground source heat pumps.
Would the proposed use result in the loss of amenity open space, recreational or community facilities?
Please identify if the proposed use would result in the loss of amenity open space, recreational or community facilities. Please also explain any mitigation that will be required.
Historic and Cultural Landscape 

Is the site in close proximity to a Scheduled Ancient Monument and/or Listed Building?

Please provide details of the proximity to any scheduled ancient monuments and / or listed buildings. These details are contained in the LDP Constraints Map and can be found here.
Is the site within/adjacent to a conservation area?

Please provide details of whether the site is within or adjacent to a conservation area. These details are contained in the LDP Constraints Map and can be found here.
Is the site within or in close proximity to a historic park and garden and /or a historic landscape?

Please provide details of whether the site is within or in close proximity to a historic park and garden and or a historic landscape. These details are contained in the LDP Constraints Map and can be found here. 
Economy

If the proposed development relates to a non-residential use, would it result in the generation of new jobs?  What is the net increase in jobs resulting from the proposal?
If the proposed development is for a non-residential use such as employment; tourism and leisure; and community facility, please indicate if the development would result in the generation of new jobs and approximately how many. 

Utilities 

Is the site capable of connection to the following services? Mains water supply, electrical supply, landline telephone, mains sewerage, gas supply, broadband, any other. 

Please mark with a X all that are relevant. For those that are not marked please provide an explanation of how access to the service will be obtained. 
Site Deliverability and Viability 

Please give an indication of the likely timescales for the submission of a planning application and commencement on site. Please also give an indication of the expected annual build rates during the period 2018-2033. This should account for any known constraints indicated elsewhere in the form. Candidate sites must be capable of being delivered within the RLDP proposed period. 
What constraints/covenants on the site would need to be overcome before development can commence and how would this be achieved?

Please provide details of any other known constraints, not previously indicated that may impact upon the deliverability of the site. Please indicate how the constraints can be overcome. 

Have you undertaken any site surveys?

Proposers should indicate yes or no. Please provide details of any site surveys that may have been undertaken to date. 

If you are the landowner have you engaged with/undertaken any discussions with a potential developer(s)?

Proposers should indicate yes or no. If discussions have been held with potential developers or future occupiers, please provide details.

Have there been any pre-application discussions? Are there any layout plans?

Proposers should indicate yes or no. If pre application discussions have been held, please provide details. Please provide any layout plans that have been prepared for the site. 

Has a Viability Assessment been submitted? 
Proposers should indicate yes or no. The Council will require a viability assessment on your site in order to demonstrate whether its delivery is viable. Failure to submit a viability assessment will result in your proposed site not being considered for inclusion in the RLDP.  Guidance on preparing a viability assessment is available on the BGCBC website. 
Is the site financially viable to come forward?

Proposers should indicate yes or no. The conclusions of the viability assessment should be briefly noted here. 

Does the site (or part of the site) currently have planning permission, or has the site obtained planning permission in the past? If yes, what has prevented delivery previously?
Proposers should indicate yes or no. If you identified earlier in the form that the site has planning permission or previously obtained planning permission in the past, please explain here what has prevented the delivery of the site. 
How will the development of the site benefit the community?

Please provide details of how the development of the site will benefit the community for example affordable housing or providing a facility or service such as a school or park.
What Happens Next?

· Each site will be allocated a unique reference number 

· We will acknowledge receipt of your submission

· The site details will be entered into the Candidate Site Register 

· Your details will be added to the LDP database

· We may contact you for more information about your site

· We may wish to visit your site and will contact the landowner for permission to do so
Closing Dates for Submissions 

For candidate sites to be considered as part of the replacement Local Development Plan the submission form and accompanying plan must be returned via post to Development Plans team, Brynmawr Central Depot, Barleyfield Industrial Estate, Brynmawr, NP23 4YF or email to planningpolicy@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 

Further Information and Contacts

For further assistance on the candidate site process or the revised LDP in general please;

· Check out the website 

· Email planningpolicy@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 

· Contact the team on 01495 354740
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